# Human Rights Due Diligence

**GRI Standards:** 

414: Supplier Social Assessment

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Sanofi's commitment to respect internationally recognized human rights and to exercise human rights due diligence in all its activities is disclosed in this factsheet. We have structured our reporting along the lines of the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights since 2014 as it is the framework we use to deploy our approach, by referring to the UN Guiding Principles Reporting Framework<sup>(1)</sup>. For the convenience of our readers, a matching table based on the UN Guiding Principles Reporting Framework appears at the end of this document. Using the UN Guiding Principles together with the UN Guiding Principles Reporting Framework enable Sanofi to provide a reporting that is complete, meaningful and aligned with the global standards on corporate respect for human rights.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The UN Guiding Principles Reporting Framework is the first comprehensive guidance for companies to report on human rights issues in line with their responsibility to respect human rights. This responsibility is set out in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, which represent the authoritative global standard in this field. For more information, see: <a href="http://www.ungpreporting.org/consult-the-reporting-framework/download-the-reporting-framework/">http://www.ungpreporting.org/consult-the-reporting-framework/</a>

Following the adoption of the French Duty of Vigilance Law in March 2017, Sanofi SA now has a legal obligation to establish and implement a vigilance plan<sup>(2)</sup> to identify and prevent the risks of serious harm to human rights, personal health and safety and the environment caused by its activities, those of its controlled subsidiaries or those of its suppliers or subcontractors (within the framework of the joint commercial relationship). This "human rights vigilance plan" is clearly in line with the Company's previous commitments to respect human rights and to exercise vigilance regarding the consequences of its activities on individuals and builds on the Company's existing processes; these commitments and processes are described in this factsheet.

# OUR COMMITMENT TO RESPECT HUMAN RIGHTS BY EXERCISING HUMAN RIGHTS DUE DILIGENCE IN ALL OUR ACTIVITIES

- 1. Commitment: how do we embed our commitment to respect human rights?
- a) Adopting a Human Rights Statement from the top management
- Upholding international standards on human rights as a minimum requirement for conducting business
- c) Embedding Sanofi's commitment into our internal reference documents and processes
- **2.** The Human Rights risks mapping
  - a) A thorough understanding of Sanofi's potential human rights impacts and salient human rights issues (Human Rights Guide)
- b) Focus on human rights risks mapping linked to suppliers practices
- 3. Risk-management measures
  - a) Global policies
  - b) Dedicated actions to manage salient human rights issues
  - c) Training senior executives and operational managers on human rights
  - d) Stakeholder engagement
- 4. Grievance mechanisms
  - a) For our workforce
  - **b)** For our patients, consumers and others
- **5.** Monitoring of the Human Rights due diligence process

Human Rights Due Diligence Factsheet Published May 2024

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> As required by law, the vigilance plan is made public in the 2017 *Document de Reference* and the report on its effective implementation will be published annually in the future *Documents de reference*.

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

| 1. Commitment: how do we embed our commitment to respect human rights?5  |
|--|
| 1.1.ADOPTING A HUMAN RIGHTS STATEMENT FROM THE TOP MANAGEMENT5   |
| 1.2. UPHOLDING INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS ON HUMAN RIGHTS AS A MINIMUM REQUIREMENT FOR CONDUCTING BUSINESS5             |
| 1.3. EMBEDDING SANOFI'S COMMITMENT INTO OUR INTERNAL REFERENCE DOCUMENTS AND PROCESSES6                              |
| 2. The human rights risks mapping7   |
| 2.1. A THOROUGH UNDERSTANDING OF SANOFI'S POTENTIAL HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACTS AND SALIENT HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES7            |
| 2.2. FOCUS ON HUMAN RIGHTS RISKS MAPPING LINKED TO SUPPLIERS PRACTICES8  |
| 3. Risk – management measures8   |
| 3.1. GLOBAL POLICIES8  |
| 3.2. DEDICATED ACTIONS TO MANAGE SALIENT HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES   |
| 3.3. TRAINING SENIOR EXECUTIVES AND OPERATIONAL MANAGERS ON HUMAN RIGHTS11   |
| 3.4. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT11  |
| 4. Implement grievance mechanisms11  |
| 4.1. FOR OUR WORKFORCE: AN INTERNAL DEDICATED COMPLIANCE HELPLINE WELL KNOWN BY EMPLOYEES ERREUR! SIGNET NON DEFINI. |
| 4.2. FOR OUR PATIENTS, CONSUMERS AND OTHERS11  |

| <i>5</i> . | Monitoring of the human rights due diligence process .12 |
|------------|--|
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |
|            |  |

# 1. Commitment: how do we embed our commitment to respect human rights?

# 1.1.ADOPTING A HUMAN RIGHTS STATEMENT FROM THE TOP MANAGEMENT

Sanofi's Human Rights Statement is embedded from the top of the business through its endorsement by the Senior Vice President in charge of Corporate Social Responsibility.

The statement specifies that as a multinational healthcare company keenly aware of its social responsibility. Sanofi is committed to integrating respect for human rights into all its business operations and public positions. We are convinced that, while states and governments have a duty to protect human rights through adequate laws and policies, businesses also have a role to play, which begins with identifying their own impacts on human rights and taking measures to prevent human rights violations.

The Human Rights Statement was developed during the development of the Sanofi Human Rights Guide in 2012-2013.

For more information, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Human Rights in Our Activities Guide.

# 1.2. UPHOLDING INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS ON HUMAN RIGHTS AS A MINIMUM REQUIREMENT FOR CONDUCTING BUSINESS

Beyond complying with national laws and regulations in all of its countries of operation, Sanofi is committed to respecting the principles listed in the following international reference instruments:

- the UN Guiding Principles for Businesses and Human Rights;
- the UN Global Compact;
- · the Children's Rights and Business Principles;
- the Universal Declaration of Human Rights;
- the International Labor Organization Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work; and
- the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises.

Within the scope of its commitment to the UN Global Compact Human Rights Principles, Sanofi is also required to issue an annual Communication on Progress, signed by the Global Head of CSR and the CEO, to report Sanofi's progress to the Secretary General of the United Nations.

The United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) is a strategic public-private initiative for organizations committed to social and environmental sustainability. As a signatory to the UNGC since 2000, Sanofi is fully committed to upholding the 21 advanced criteria in connection with the Global Compact's ten principles in the areas of human rights, labor standards, environmental sustainability and anti-corruption. In 2015, Sanofi reached the UNGC Advanced Level, which was renewed in 2019 and received an attestation of external assessment following the peer review of our Communication on Progress.

#### **Our commitment to respect Workers' Rights**

We employ more than 86,000 people in many countries and work with a large number of suppliers and subcontractors. This gives us a duty to respect the human rights of workers both in our own operations and in our supply chain. Fundamental human rights at work refer mainly to rights associated with ILO standards (International Labor Organization), and in particular the following conventions:

• freedom of association and recognition of the right to collective bargaining (ILO conventions 87 and 98);

- elimination of all forms of forced labor (ILO conventions 29 and 105);
- effective elimination of child labor (ILO conventions 138 and 182);
- elimination of discrimination in employment (ILO conventions 100 and 111); and

just and favorable working conditions (ILO conventions 1,14,106,132 and 138).

#### **Our commitment to respect Children's Rights**

Sanofi commits to respecting the Children's Rights and Business Principles developed by UNICEF in March 2012 alongside the UN Global Compact and Save the Children as the first comprehensive guidance for companies on how to integrate children's rights into their policies and business processes.

These Principles are at the foundation of the targeted programs that we develop for children worldwide; children's health is an acknowledged business and CSR priority for Sanofi.

For more information, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Human Rights in Our Activities Guide.

# 1.3. EMBEDDING SANOFI'S COMMITMENT INTO OUR INTERNAL REFERENCE DOCUMENTS AND PROCESSES

For Sanofi, it is essential to ensure the coherence between our responsibility to respect human rights and the policies and procedures that govern our wider business activities and relationships.

In addition, the human rights principles which Sanofi commits to are listed in our key internal reference documents, such as:

- · the Code of Conduct;
- the Social Charter; and
- the Suppliers Code of Conduct.

These internal documents present human rights and HSE as a core element of the Company's values and contribute to embedding human rights and HSE principles into our company culture. They also set out our expectations towards our stakeholders to meet their responsibility to respect human rights and HSE standards, explicitly stating that the mentioned criteria are to be considered as the minimum applicable standard should local regulations be less stringent in any of Sanofi's countries of operation.

Sanofi has set up rigorous management processes and systems—such as Quality, Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE), Compliance, Drug Safety Monitoring, and Risk Management — enabling Sanofi to deploy its CSR policies at every level across the Company.

Human rights criteria and HSE are broken down and integrated into various issue-specific processes and systems, contributing to prevent employees, patients and local communities' rights violations and ensuring compliance with internal reference tools and Sanofi policies.

All the Sanofi CSR Commitments described above are publicly available and communicated internally and externally to all our employees, business partners, suppliers and others relevant stakeholders. Sanofi requires all its partners, including in joint-ventures, to comply with the company's CSR commitments.

Additionally, Sanofi's commitment to responsible procurement is reflected in our Supplier Code of Conduct, with which any supplier – and any supplier of our suppliers – must comply. They are expected to respect:

- labor regulations against child labor, forced labor, violence, and discrimination (International Labor Organization, ILO core conventions);
- decent working conditions (working hours, wages and benefits, freedom of association);
- health and safety: workers' health and safety protection, hazard information and training, and emergency preparedness; and
- environment: regulatory compliance, climate change mitigation, minimizing releases in the environment (air, water, soil), pollution prevention, reduction of energy and water usage, and biodiversity.

sanofi

The Supplier Code of Conduct is integrated into our electronic ordering systems. Each time a supplier is onboarded, they must acknowledge and agree to our Supplier Code of Conduct, which is available in the Document Center on www.sanofi.com.

### 2. The human rights risks mapping

# 2.1. A THOROUGH UNDERSTANDING OF SANOFI'S POTENTIAL HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACTS AND SALIENT HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES

#### 2.1.1. Identifying all our human rights challenges in the value chain

By 2012-2013, Sanofi organized a wide-scope internal self- assessment to identify the nature and extent of potential human rights impacts linked to its activities, i.e., in the pharmaceutical industry and in the workplace. This participatory evaluation involved 37 representatives from more than 12 Sanofi directions, who participated in five cross-functional working sessions. Each session focused on the human rights impacts, which can potentially arise at each step of Sanofi's value chain, from research and development of medicines to distribution and use. One interdisciplinary working session was focused on human rights at work.

The results of this self-assessment led to the design of a guide for Sanofi employees, *Human Rights in our Activities*. It maps potential human rights impacts of Sanofi's business activity along the four steps of a drug's life cycle, with a transverse section on human rights at work. It was designed with four aims:

- to inform and familiarize all Sanofi employees with the key concepts and principles of respect for human rights;
- to raise awareness on the spectrum of human rights risks related to the functional responsibilities of our personnel and business partners;
- to describe a selection of relevant best practices implemented at Sanofi; and
- To act as a reference point for Sanofi managers making decisions about potential issues linked to human rights in their daily activity.

The *Human Rights in our Activities Guide* is deployed through internal tools such as a slide kit for managers and a dedicated website to help Sanofi managers better understand their role and responsibilities in applying human rights principles.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Human Rights in Our Activities Guide.

#### 2.1.2. Defining our salient human rights issues

Sanofi has mapped out the major challenges facing the Company and its joint ventures as part of the application of the law on the duty of vigilance and its requirement to identify the risks of harm to people and the environment. In order to do so, Sanofi relied in particular on returns experiences of existing internal policies and processes (as the Human Rights guide and internal policies on Environment and Health & Safety). Particular attention was paid to vulnerable groups such as women and migrant workers in the analysis.

These analyses, supported by external data, enabled Sanofi to identify eight major risks to negatively impact people or the environment, considered as the human rights salient issues for the Company:

- risks related to patient protection:
  - > ensure patient safety,
  - > preserve the physical integrity of participants in clinical trials, and
  - > protect patients' personal data,
- risks related to respect rights of employees:

- offer the highest health and safety working conditions,
- > guaranteeing employees' fundamental rights, and
- > protect employees' personal data,
- Risks related to respect for the environment and rights of local communities:
  - > minimize environmental impacts and control use of resources, and
  - > fight against biopiracy.

These issues are linked to the activities of Sanofi, conducted directly by the Company or indirectly by its commercial relationships.

# 2.2. FOCUS ON HUMAN RIGHTS RISKS MAPPING LINKED TO SUPPLIERS PRACTICES

We work with many suppliers worldwide to procure the materials, goods and services that Sanofi requires to manufacture our products, serve patients and supply our facilities worldwide.

Since 2007, our responsible procurement approach, embedded into our overall procurement strategy, has aimed to ensure that our suppliers uphold high ethical standards and take social and environmental responsibilities seriously. We expect suppliers to meet the standards set out in the Sanofi Suppliers Code of Conduct.

We have developed a risk-based approach to concentrate our efforts on those supplier segments considered to be most at risk in terms of key CSR criteria — for example, human rights, labor and environmental practices, governance and anti-corruption. This approach was reinforced in 2017 as part of the implementation of the Due Diligence plan for 2018. It is based on the identification of the riskiest purchasing categories according to their inherent risks (with a focus on vulnerable groups such as women). The country risk is used in second place to prioritize suppliers. This risk assessment was updated in 2020.

An overall and composite rating was calculated for each procurement category and 44 procurement categories were considered a priori to be very high risk in terms of environmental protection, personal safety/health and respect for human rights. These purchasing categories are related to the following areas: waste management, demolition activities, remediation, major works, hazardous products, active ingredients, natural products, pharmaceutical subcontracting, clinical trials, transportation and distribution, site operations, security services, travel and events and recruitment agencies.

This new mapping made it possible to define response typologies for each category identified as being at risk with regard to the vigilance plan (health and safety, environment and human rights). These responses depend on the risk rating, the country of activity, the characteristics of the service provided (e.g. whether on-site or not, the service provider's organization, recurrence, etc.) and the volume of purchases. Possible risk management responses include: audits (internal or via PSCI sector initiatives), evaluations, prevention plans, specific awareness raising actions, etc.

### 3. Risk – management measures

In order to manage salient human rights issues identified, the Company has developed responses that can be cross-cutting across all subjects or specific to a particular risk.

#### 3.1. GLOBAL POLICIES

#### The Code of Conduct and its implementation

The Sanofi's Code of Conduct explicitly defines the Company's principles on human rights with reference to international standards. This code is deployed within the Company, through mandatory training actions

and Sanofi's compliance program, led by the Ethics & Business Integrity Department and overseen by the Executive Committee Compliance, chaired by the CEO.

For more information, see our Document Center: Ethics & Business Integrity Factsheet.

#### • The responsible procurement approach

The Responsible Purchasing approach asks suppliers for compliance with Sanofi's Human Rights commitments through the Suppliers Code of Conduct and provides for CSR assessments of suppliers. It is supplemented by membership of PSCI (Pharmaceutical Supply Chain initiative), which enable the company to pool audits and supplier support actions.

This approach has been reviewed in 2017 (see above) within the framework of the implementation of the French law on the duty of vigilance by the redesigning the identification methodology and supplier ratings. Priorities actions were also identified for 2018, such as the redefinition of the responses to be provided by buyers according to the supplier risk rating or the revision of Suppliers Code of Conduct. The challenge is also to improve coordination and sharing of internal actions relating to management of suppliers from the various departments to optimize and rationalize them.

To ensure that Sanofi buyers have a sound grasp of the issues and of the responsible procurement approach, Sanofi has implemented a worldwide training program. This training program helps to integrate a deep understanding of the principles contained in the U.N. Global Compact and the conventions of the ILO.

The Supplier Relationships Charter, based on the Sanofi Code of Conduct, sets out the rules of conduct that must be respected by all Sanofi employees in their relationships with suppliers, and governs the issues relating to invitations, gifts, meetings and correspondence.

For more information, see our Document Center: the Sustainable Procurement Factsheet.

#### The protection of personal data

In the area of personal data protection, Sanofi has developed a global policy of respect for the right to privacy and personal data protection that applies to all the company's activities (employee data, patient data and data of any third parties in general).

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Declaration of Extra-Financial Performance 2023</u>, section 3.4.10 Data Privacy.

#### 3.2. DEDICATED ACTIONS TO MANAGE SALIENT HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES

#### Human rights issues linked to the patient safety:

Patient safety issues are managed by processes related to pharmacovigilance (which is intended to monitor and continuously assess the risk-benefit balance of products), the quality of medicines and the fight against the counterfeiting.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Declaration of Extra-Financial Performance 2023</u>, section 3.3.4. Product safety for patients and consumers

Regarding clinical trials, specific rules compliant with international and national standards have been developed to ensure in particular the free and informed consent of participants. A clinical trial audit program is developed to verify compliance of operations with internal and external standards of reference.

For more information, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Medical Ethics & Bioethics and Clinical Trials Factsheet.

#### Human rights issues linked to respect for workers' rights:

In the area of health and safety, the Company has developed a strong health and safety policy that aims to maintain the health and well-being of employees and suppliers working at Sanofi sites. Led by the HSE Department of the Company and benefiting from dedicated governance, this policy is deployed within the entities, in particular by the definition of operational rules targeted on key areas of vigilance, an audit program and training activities.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Declaration of Extra-Financial Performance 2023</u>, section 3.4.7 Employee health and safety

The Company pays particular attention to respecting the fundamental rights of workers, employed by Sanofi or by its business relationships. It developed internal policies that ask for implementation of due diligence processes by entities at the operational level (identification and management of risks) with reference to commitments based on ILO international conventions, in particular:

- ILO Convention No. 87 and No. 98 on Freedom of Association and the right to collective bargaining;
- ILO Convention 138 and 182 on Child Labor; and
- ILO Convention No. 29 and 105 on Forced Labor.

The monitoring of the implementation of these policies is integrated into the system of Sanofi's internal control.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Human Rights at Work Factsheet.

#### Human rights issues linked to equal renumeration:

At Sanofi we believe in paying equitably for similar work. This does not necessarily mean everyone doing the same job will receive the same pay. Any differences in salary should be clearly explainable in line with Sanofi's pay policies (grade, job profiles, location, skills, etc.). In 2021, the Company launched a Global Pay Equity Action Plan to track and reinforce practices to ensure and promote pay equity. This action plan includes three core global commitments:

- > Regularly monitor gender pay equity across all countries via the dashboards available and develop action plans to remediate any unjustified pay gaps.
- > Push further for equity in all pay decisions, develop Pay Equity mindset and addressing factors that may impact pay gaps at each critical pay step (hiring, pay review, etc.).
- > Encourage local processes to review base salary for employees returning from parental / family leave, preventing disparities.

The Company aims to avoid any discrimination (e.g. based on gender, race, etc) while making compensation decisions and base those decisions on Sanofi pay policies. Where disparities exist, Sanofi seeks opportunities to allocate specific budgets to address pay gaps in one or multiple steps. For example, in France, 0.1% of the total salary mass was allocated to reducing the pay gap between women and men. Similarly, many other countries also kept a dedicated budget to address pay equity related adjustments during 2022.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Declaration of Extra-Financial Performance 2023</u>, section 3.3.1.5.2.3. Ensuring pay equity

#### Human rights issues linked to the protection of the environment and local communities:

Minimize the use of natural resources by the Company's activities is an objective of the environmental policy of Sanofi, and in particular water resources. Specific operating actions have been implemented to best manage water supply and use for the production of medicines and vaccines.

The Company's environmental policy also aims to reduce the environmental impacts of its activities, in particular through prevention of accidental pollutions and the management of drug residues in the environment. For example, different types of sites (chemical and biochemical production, solid pharmaceuticals production etc.) have been assessed to define specifically the tools and appropriate means to the management of the drug substances by site category.

<u>For more information</u>, see our <u>Document Center</u>: Water Stewardship Factsheet and Pharmaceuticals in the Environment Factsheet.

The Company is committed to complying with the conventions relating to protection of biodiversity and the fight against biopiracy and in particular the respect of intellectual property rights of indigenous peoples. To

do this, it ensures compliance with international standards through the implementation of due diligence processes and investigations, for example in the event of the use of a new product from natural sources by the R&D division.

For more information, see our Document Center: Biodiversity Factsheet.

### 3.3. TRAINING SENIOR EXECUTIVES AND OPERATIONAL MANAGERS ON HUMAN RIGHTS

With the aim of embedding Sanofi's human rights vision and approach into day-to-day responsibilities and developing employees' understanding of the importance of exercising human rights due diligence, the Company provides tools and builds capacities in support of corporate and operational-level decision-makers.

Between 2009 and 2019, the Company has been delivering inter-company human rights training sessions (via EDH), to foster employees' understanding and to promote respect for human rights as an integral part of their business conduct. To ensure the effective application of its internal policies, Sanofi organized also human rights training for its team of internal auditors covering Europe, Africa, the Middle East and South Asia.

A new human rights training action plan has been formalized since 2021, which will include an e-learning module for all employees and targeted training for specific functions (auditors, HR, buyers, etc.) or at-risk countries.

#### 3.4. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We believe that one of the key success factors in promoting respect for human rights in business is ensuring that all stakeholders are informed about their individual and collective rights, and are aware of their respective obligations towards one another. Sanofi is convinced that continuously and progressively responding to stakeholders' expectations on human rights constitutes an opportunity to improve both our human rights performance and our bottom line.

As instance, Sanofi regularly presents the deployment and monitoring of the vigilance plan to the trade unions, via a dedicated working group mandated by the Group Committee. Several meetings were organized to discuss the mapping of human rights risks in the workplace, the responsible purchasing approach, the alert mechanism and the assessment of supplier evaluations.

Aware of the importance of the issues at stake and concerned about building a solid and sustainable approach, Sanofi wanted to compare the content of its human rights approach, with the views of external stakeholders such as: the association *Entreprises pour les Droits de l'Homme* (an association of French companies working on the implementation of human rights vigilance approaches in companies, <a href="https://www.e-dh.org">www.e-dh.org</a>) and PSCI (Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Initiative). It has also shared its approach with French bodies such as AFEP, France Chimie and international bodies such as the World Bank and the World Business Council on Sustainable Development (WBCSD).

### 4. Implement grievance mechanisms

#### 4.1. SPEAK-UP HELPLINE (WHISLTE-BLOWING MECHANISM)

We promote "Speak Up" and communication between employees, managers and customers, allowing for a better understanding of the issues and concerns of all stakeholders. Concerns should be raised to the global Speak-Up Helpline which is a safe channel operated by a third-party vendor and overseen by the Ethics and Business Integrity department. Reports to the Speak-Up Helpline can be made (anonymously if a reporter wishes) through a web-form or via a toll-free number available to employees, contractors, and business partners in multiple languages 24 hours a day, 7 days a week in 80 languages. The system allows

reporters to check and follow up on their reports and to also check if responses, updates, or requests to provide further details or information have been posted. In the United States, a dedicated toll-free external Speak-Up Helpline number has been set up for Sanofi employees in accordance with local regulations and practices.

If employees have a concern or believe in good faith that a law, a rule or one of the principles in our Code of Conduct has been or is about to be violated, they are encouraged to speak up and report to their line manager or management, by using the compliance reporting helplines or through whatever channel the employee chooses is most appropriate, including (but not limited to) People & Culture, Legal, or the Ethics & Business Integrity department .

Under our alerts management policy, Sanofi employees are encouraged to identify themselves when they report an incident, as this helps the investigation process. If an employee decides not to disclose their identity, an anonymous report can be submitted.

Employees who raise concerns will not be subject to disciplinary action or discrimination if they act in good faith and with no malicious intent, even if the facts reported prove to be inaccurate or no further action is taken.

Use of our compliance helplines is clearly described in the Code of Conduct.

Sanofi received a total of 674 global reports via the compliance helplines, submitted by phone or online form and additional reports were made through other reporting channels such as e-mail and verbal reports. Reports made in 2023 via the compliance helplines accounted for 56% of all alerts, up from 48% in 2022.

Of the 674 alerts, a total of 273 cases were substantiated. In total 124 dismissals or resignations took place related to misconduct. Other corrective actions were also implemented as per Sanofi's Corrective & Disciplinary Actions policy, such as additional training, process improvement steps, remuneration impacts, and verbal or written warnings.

#### 4.2. FOR OUR PATIENTS, CONSUMERS AND OTHERS

A dedicated system is in place in all Sanofi entities to handle complaints received from patients, consumers and healthcare professionals, potentially indicative of quality defects or difficulties in handling or using our products. This system involves commercial affiliates, manufacturing sites and other functions such as pharmacovigilance as needed and aims at promptly analyzing the complaints and defining corrective and preventive actions if needed. Likewise, regulatory authorities are notified in a timely manner about defects, in compliance with regulatory requirements. We seek to learn from complaints to design improvements that will make Sanofi products easier for patients to use, whenever needed and technically possible. Providing user-friendly products helps create the conditions for optimal efficacy.

In its effort to be a patient-centric healthcare company, Sanofi partners with Patient Advocates and Groups (PAGs) to gather patients' inputs, in an active listening and open dialogue approach, helping Sanofi ensure that designed solutions genuinely address patients' underlying needs.

In addition, Sanofi appointed an internal ombudsman, independent of the procurement function, who is in charge of facilitating the resolution of work-related differences between Sanofi and our suppliers with neutrality, impartiality and confidentiality.

### 5. Monitoring of the human rights due diligence process

Steering of the human rights due diligence process is provided by the CSR Department, which ensures the coordination and implementation of various measures of the process. The CSR Department works closely with the HSE, Purchasing and Ethics & Business Integrity Departments.

Monitoring of risk management measures and grievances mechanisms are provided by specific directions in charge. Sanofi discloses performance indicators on human rights, including those developed by the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), in its integrated CSR reports.

For monitoring indicators for each of the key issues identified, please refer to the corresponding factsheet.

Within the scope of its commitment to the UN Global Compact Human Rights Principles, the Company is also required to issue an annual Communication on Progress (CoP), signed by the Senior VP of CSR and the CEO, to report Sanofi's progress to the Secretary General of the United Nations.

The United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) is a strategic public- private initiative for organizations committed to social and environmental sustainability. As a signatory to the UNGC since 2000, Sanofi is fully committed to upholding the 21 advanced criteria in connection with the Global Compact's ten principles in the areas of human rights, labor standards, environmental sustainability and anti-corruption. In 2015, Sanofi reached the UN Global Compact Advanced Level, which was renewed in 2019 and received an attestation of external assessment following the peer review of our Communication on Progress.

<u>For more information</u>, see the <u>UN Global Compact</u>, and <u>Sanofi's Communication on Progress to the United Nations</u>.

Indicators selected based on the reporting framework linked to the key elements of UN Guiding Principles and in correspondence with the five steps of this report

| UN GUIDING PRINCIPLES REPORTING FRAMEWORK  | CORRESPONDANCE WITH SECTIONS OF THIS REPORT  |
|--|--|
| POLICY COMMITEMENT A1 What does the company say publicly about its commitment to respect human rights?   | see 1. Commitment (p. 5)   |
| EMBEDDING RESPECT FOR HUMAN RIGHTS A2 How does the company demonstrate the importance it attaches to the implementation of its human rights commitment? C1 Does the company have any specific policies that address its salient human rights issues and, if so, what are they?   | see 1. Commitment and 3. Riskmanagement measures (p. 5 & 8)  |
| ASSESSING IMPACTS B1 Statement of salient issues B2 Determination of salient issues B3 Choice of focal Geographies B4 Additional severe impacts C2 What is the company's approach to engagement with stakeholders in relation to each salient human rights issue? C3 How does the company identify any changes in the nature of each salient human issues over time? | see 2. Human rights risks mapping (p. 6)   |
| INTEGRATING FINDINGS AND TAKING ACTION C4 How does the company integrate its findings about each salient human rights issue into its decision-making processes and actions?  | see 3. Risk-management measures (p. 8)   |
| TRACKING PERFORMANCE C5 How does the company know it its efforts to address each salient human rights issue are effective in practice? COMMUNICATING PERFORMANCE Application of the UN Guiding Principles reporting framework  | see 3. Risk-management measures (p. 8) and 5. Monitoring of human rights due diligence process (p. 11) |
| REMEDIATION  C6 How does the company enable effective remedy if people are harmed by its actions or decisions in relation to a salient human rights issue?   | see 4. Grievances mechanisms (p. 10)   |

#### For more information, see our <u>Documents Center</u>:

- Human Rights in our Activities Guide
- Code of Conduct
- Social Charter